
 

 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION AGENCY 

CITY OF LAKE CITY 

February 06, 2024 at 6:00 PM 
Venue: City Hall 

AGENDA 

The meeting will be held in the City Council Chambers on the second floor of City 
Hall located at 205 North Marion Avenue, Lake City, FL 32055. Members of the 
public may also view the meeting on our YouTube channel. YouTube channel 
information is located at the end of this agenda. 

INVOCATION 

ROLL CALL 

MINUTES 

i. Meeting Minutes: January 3, 2024 

ii. Meeting Minutes: January 17, 2024 

OLD BUSINESS- None 

NEW BUSINESS 

iii. COA 24-01, submitted by Jennifer Holloway, as owner, requesting a Certificate 
of Appropriateness in a Residential Single Family-3 (RSF-3) zoning district as 
established in section 4.5 of the Land Development Regulations and located 
within the  Lake Isabella Historic District, established in Section 10.11.2, of the 
Land Development Regulations on property described as Parcel 13291-000 
within Columbia County. 

iv. COA 24-05, submitted by Sylvester Warren, as owner, requesting a Certificate 
of Appropriateness in a Commercial General (CG) zoning district as established 
in section 4.12 of the Land Development Regulations and located within the 
Lake Isabella Historic District, established in Section 10.11.2, of the Land 
Development Regulations on property described as Parcel 12782-000 within 
Columbia County. 

v. COA 24-07, submitted by Beverly Standridge, as agent, for The ARC North 
Florida, INC, owner, requesting a Certificate of Appropriateness in a Residential 
Office (RO) zoning district as established in section 4.10 of the Land 
Development Regulations and located within the view shed of the Lake Isabelle 

1



 
 
Historic Preservation Agency Agenda  February 06, 2024 

 
Historic District, established in Section 10.11.2, of the Land Development 
Regulations on property described as Parcel 13734-000 within Columbia 
County. 

WORKSHOP- Discussion on workshops that the Board would want to have on the 
agendas from March thru July. 

ADJOURNMENT 

YouTube Channel Information 

Members of the public may also view the meeting on our YouTube channel at: 
https://youtube.com/c/CityofLakeCity 

Pursuant to 286.0105, Florida Statutes, the City hereby advises the public if a person 
decides to appeal any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter 
considered at its meeting or hearings, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, 
and that, for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is to be based.  

Pursuant to 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons needing special accommodations to 
participate in this meeting should contact the City Manager's Office at (386) 719-5768. 

 

2



File Attachments for Item:

i. Meeting Minutes: January 3, 2024

3



HISTORIC PRESERVATION AGENCY 

 MEETING MINUTES 

Page | 1 

 

Date: 01/03/2024 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 Mrs. McKellum- Present  Mr. McMahon- Present               Mr. Nelson- Present 
 Mr. Carter- Present  Mr. Lydick- Present 
 
MINUTES: December 05, 2024 Historic Preservation Agency Meeting. 

Comments or Revisions:  None 
 Motion to approve 12/05/2023 Meeting Minutes by Mr. Carter and seconded by Mr. 
McMahon. 
 
OLD BUSINESS:  
 
Consent agenda -Item COA23-34 tabled at previous meeting on 11/07/2023 as continued till the next 
scheduled meeting. Mr. Lydick stated that he needs to recuse himself from voting on this petition as he 
is the owner of the property. Mr. Lydick passed the petition over to the Vice Chair, Mr. Carter. Mr. 
Carter motioned to un-tabled petition COA23-34. Motion approved unanimously. 
Discussion: 
 Robert stated that they are repainting the roof to the same color that is was painted in 2011.  
 
Motion to close public comment by: Mr. Nelson Seconded by: Mr. McMahon 
 
Motion to approve petition COA23-34 with the correction of the address from 238 SE Camp to 268 SE 
Camp by: Mr. McMahon Second by: Mr. Nelson 
 
Mrs. McKellum: Aye Mr. McMahon: Aye Mr. Nelson: Aye 
Mr. Carter: Aye  Mr. Lydick: Recused           
 
NEW BUSINESS: None 
 
Emergency walk on item.  
 
Petition # COA24-06 Presented By: Gayle Boudreau, as Owner 
And gives address of: 202 W Duval, Lake City, FL 
Petitioner is Sworn in by: Mr. Lydick 
 
 
 Mr. Lydick asked if there was a petition number. He also asked if we could assign a number. 
Robert stated that it could be assigned COA 24-06. 
 Mr. Young asked to walk an item on due to a stop work order put on 202 W Duval. He stated 
that a permit was issued. He stated that the historic building did not flag as a historic site due to it no 
being in the historic district. He stated that this building is Nationally recognized site. Attorney 
recommended not to take action due to no notices going out to let the public know what is going on 
with it. He stated that we would have to research article 10 of the Land Development Regulations and 

4



HISTORIC PRESERVATION AGENCY 

 MEETING MINUTES 

Page | 2 

 

that the board needs to keep in mind that we cannot make them wait too long to take action as some of 
the interior could get damaged. The board discussed put in on a Special Called Meeting on January 17. 
Mr. Lydick stated that this property is held to a different standard due to it being Nationally recognized. 
He stated that the Secretary of Interiors Guide on Rehabilitation of Historic Sites has a lot of shall in it.  
 Gayle stated that she bought the building from Burger King at a discount due to the condition of 
the roof. She stated that the roof panels are rooting. They are individually stamped metal tiles. She 
stated that they have had numerous issues with the roof leaking. She showed the board several pieces 
of the current roof tiles that had be taken off. She stated that Burger King did not want to put a roof on 
it due to the extent of the work that would need to be done. She stated that the roof was covered with 
a protectant which made is root quicker. She stated that no part of the metal can be saved.  
 Ryan stated that they considered coating the roof but he said that the roof is in to bad of 
condition. He stated that they are installing a high-end roof. He stated that t is the same type of roof 
that was installed on the Blanche. He stated that they have done a lot of roofs in the historic. Mr.Lydick 
stated that in Article 10.11.8.2 of the LDR states the historic character of the  property shall be retained 
and preserved. He asked if some of the material could be saved and or reused somewhere else on the 
building. He stated that the roof on the Blanche is concealed and that is why it could not be seen. Mr. 
Kennon explained the word shall in the LDR. Mr. Lydick stated that the tiles would cost about three 
dollars apiece. Ryan stated that this roof never terminates without touching another roof line. He stated 
that if they tried to connect the two materials it would void the warranty.  Gayle stated that she wanted 
it coated and did not want to spend the amount that the roof is costing but there is no other way. Mr. 
Carter asked if we decided if this was an acceptable material could this be on a consent agenda. He 
stated that he was concerned with the roof being exposed.  
 
Motion to table COA24-06 to the earliest time on January 17 by Mr. Carter Seconded by Mr. 
McMahon.  
 
Mrs. McKellum: Aye Mr. McMahon: Aye Mr. Nelson: Aye 
Mr. Carter: Aye  Mr. Lydick: Aye  
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:  
 Robert discussed COA24-01, COA24-02, and COA24-03. Board approved consent agenda by 
hand vote. 
WORKSHOP: None 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
Motion to Adjourn by: Mr. Carter Motion Seconded By:  Mr. McMahon 
Time: 6:41pm 
Mr. Lydick closed the meeting.  
 
 
 
 

5



HISTORIC PRESERVATION AGENCY 

 MEETING MINUTES 

Page | 3 

 

 
 
 
______________________________                                                    ____________________      
Mr. Lydick, Board Chairperson                                                               Date Approved     
 
 
______________________________                                                     ___________________ 
Robert Angelo, Secretary                                                                         Date Approved 
 

6



File Attachments for Item:

ii. Meeting Minutes: January 17, 2024

7



HISTORIC PRESERVATION AGENCY 

 MEETING MINUTES 

Page | 1 

 

Date: 01/17/2024 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 Mrs. McKellum- Present  Mr. McMahon- Present               Mr. Nelson- Present 
 Mr. Carter- Present  Mr. Lydick- Present 
 
MINUTES: None 

Comments or Revisions:  None 
 Motion to forego 1/03/2024 Meeting Minutes till next scheduled meeting by Mr. Carter and 
seconded by Mrs. McKellum. 
 
OLD BUSINESS:  
Petition # COA24-06 Presented By: Gayle Boudreau, as Owner 
And gives address of: 202 W Duval, Lake City, FL 
Petitioner is Sworn in by: Mr. Lydick 
 
Motion to un-table COA 24-06 by Mr. Carter, Seconded by Mr. Nelson. Approved by hand vote. 
 

Robert Angelo introduced petition COA 24-06. Robert stated that they are looking to replace the 
existing stamped metal tile roof with a standing seam metal roof.  

Gayle Mrs. Boudreau stated that the metal shingles that she showed at the last meeting was in 
her car in Tampa. She stated that she had Energy Roofing check into replacing the roof with stamped 
metal tiles similar to the ones up that. She stated that the would be double the price. She stated that 
she sent pictures of the damages inside the building. She stated that the roof is the original roof. She 
stated that she wants to protect the rest of the building. Mr. Lydick asked if she had got with the roofer 
to see if they could retain any of the roof tiles. She said that she did speak with them and they may be 
able to retain some of the roof over the porch sections but was not sure. Mr. Lydick asked if there was 
anyway to roof over some area to help retain any of the tiles. He mentioned that in section 10.11.8 for 
the Land Development Regulations states that the character of the building shall be retained and 
preserved. She stated that they have tried coating the tiles several times and that has caused more 
issues. She stated that there was not. Mr. Lydick asked whether the soffit or gutters were going to be 
removed or replaced. She stated that they would be removed but then put back on. Mr. McMahon 
clarified what type of metal shingles she considered. She stated that she wanted to go with asphalt 
shingles due to cost but choose to go with the metal standing seam to help keep some of the character.  
   
Motion to close public comment by Mr. Carter, Seconded by Mrs. McKellum. Approved by hand vote.  
 
Mr. Carter stated that it is the best interest to protect the whole building not just the roof. He also 
stated that they have set a president with other buildings.  
 
Motion to approve COA24-06 as submitted by Mr. Carter, Seconded by Mr. McMahon.  
 
Mrs. McKellum: Aye Mr. McMahon: Aye Mr. Nelson: Aye 
Mr. Carter: Aye  Mr. Lydick: Nye  

8



HISTORIC PRESERVATION AGENCY 

 MEETING MINUTES 

Page | 2 

 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS: None 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: None 
  
WORKSHOP: None 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
Motion to Adjourn by: Mr. Carter Motion Seconded By:  Mr. Nelson 
Time: 5:44pm 
Mr. Lydick closed the meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________                                                    ____________________      
Mr. Lydick, Board Chairperson                                                               Date Approved     
 
 
______________________________                                                     ___________________ 
Robert Angelo, Secretary                                                                         Date Approved 
 

9



File Attachments for Item:

iii. COA 24-01, submitted by Jennifer Holloway, as owner, requesting a Certificate of 

Appropriateness in a Residential Single Family-3 (RSF-3) zoning district as established in section 

4.5 of the Land Development Regulations and located within the  Lake Isabella Historic District, 

established in Section 10.11.2, of the Land Development Regulations on property described as 

Parcel 13291-000 within Columbia County.

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



File Attachments for Item:

iv. COA 24-05, submitted by Sylvester Warren, as owner, requesting a Certificate of 

Appropriateness in a Commercial General (CG) zoning district as established in section 4.12 of 

the Land Development Regulations and located within the Lake Isabella Historic District, 

established in Section 10.11.2, of the Land Development Regulations on property described as 

Parcel 12782-000 within Columbia County.

88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



File Attachments for Item:

v. COA 24-07, submitted by Beverly Standridge, as agent, for The ARC North Florida, INC, 

owner, requesting a Certificate of Appropriateness in a Residential Office (RO) zoning district as 

established in section 4.10 of the Land Development Regulations and located within the view 

shed of the Lake Isabelle Historic District, established in Section 10.11.2, of the Land 

Development Regulations on property described as Parcel 13734-000 within Columbia County.

123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161


	Top
	Item i.	Meeting Minutes 01-03-2024
	HPA Minutes 01-03-2024

	Item ii.	Meeting Minutes 01-17-2024
	HPA Minutes 01-17-2024

	Item iii.	COA 24-04
	COA 24-04 436 SE St Johns
	Proof of Posting COA 24-04

	Item iv.	COA 24-05
	COA 24-05 Parcel 12782-000
	Proof of Posting COA 24-05

	Item v.	COA 24-07
	COA 24-07 311 SE Baya Dr
	Proof of Postings COA 24-07

	Bottom



